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ANNOUNCEMENT – ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 30 JUNE 2025 

FOR RELEASE TO ALL FUNDS LISTED BELOW 

BlackRock Investment Management (Australia) Limited (BIMAL) is the Responsible Entity for the below 
listed iShares® exchange traded funds (Funds) which are quoted on the ASX.  

BIMAL announces the Annual Financial Report for the Funds, for the period ending 30 June 2025. 

ASX Code Fund 

IHWL iShares Core MSCI World ex Australia ESG (AUD Hedged) ETF 

IWLD iShares Core MSCI World ex Australia ESG ETF 

WVOL iShares MSCI World ex Australia Minimum Volatility ETF 

WDMF iShares World Equity Factor ETF 

IHOO iShares Global 100 (AUD Hedged) ETF 

IHVV iShares S&P 500 (AUD Hedged) ETF 

EMXC iShares MSCI Emerging Markets ex China ETF 

GLIN iShares Core FTSE Global Infrastructure (AUD Hedged) ETF 

GLPR iShares Core FTSE Global Property Ex Australia (AUD Hedged) ETF 

IAA iShares Asia 50 ETF 

IZZ iShares China Large-Cap ETF 

IKO iShares MSCI South Korea ETF 
 

Important Notice  

Issued by BlackRock Investment Management (Australia) Limited ABN 13 006 165 975, AFSL 230 
523 (BIMAL). 
 
This material provides general information only and does not take into account your individual 
objectives, financial situation, needs or circumstances. Before making any investment decision, you 
should assess whether the material is appropriate for you and obtain financial advice tailored to you 
having regard to your individual objectives, financial situation, needs and circumstances. Refer to 
BIMAL’s Financial Services Guide on its website for more information. This material is not a financial 
product recommendation or an offer or solicitation with respect to the purchase or sale of any 
financial product in any jurisdiction. 
 
Information provided is for illustrative and informational purposes and is subject to change. It has not 
been approved by any regulator. 
 
This material is not intended for distribution to, or use by, any person or entity in any jurisdiction or 
country where such distribution or use would be contrary to local law or regulation. BIMAL is a part of 
the global BlackRock Group which comprises of financial product issuers and investment managers 
around the world. BIMAL is the issuer of financial products and acts as an investment manager in 
Australia. 
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BIMAL is the responsible entity and issuer of units in the Australian domiciled managed investment 
schemes referred to in this material, including the Australian domiciled iShares ETFs. Any potential 
investor should consider the latest product disclosure statement (PDS) before deciding whether to 
acquire, or continue to hold, an investment in any BlackRock fund. BlackRock has also issued a target 
market determination (TMD) that describes the class of consumers that comprises the target market 
for each BlackRock fund and matters relevant to their distribution and review. The PDS and the TMD 
can be obtained by contacting the BIMAL Client Services Centre on 1300 366 100. In some instances 
the PDS and the TMD are also available on the BIMAL website at www.blackrock.com/au. An iShares 
ETF is not sponsored, endorsed, issued, sold or promoted by the provider of the index which a 
particular iShares ETF seeks to track. No index provider makes any representation regarding the 
advisability of investing in the iShares ETFs. Further information on the index providers can be found 
in the BIMAL website terms and conditions at www.blackrock.com/au. 
 
BIMAL, its officers, employees and agents believe that the information in this material and the sources 
on which it is based (which may be sourced from third parties) are correct as at the date of publication. 
While every care has been taken in the preparation of this material, no warranty of accuracy or 
reliability is given and no responsibility for the information is accepted by BIMAL, its officers, 
employees or agents. Except where contrary to law, BIMAL excludes all liability for this information. 
 
Any investment is subject to investment risk, including delays on the payment of withdrawal proceeds 
and the loss of income or the principal invested. While any forecasts, estimates and opinions in this 
material are made on a reasonable basis, actual future results and operations may differ materially 
from the forecasts, estimates and opinions set out in this material. No guarantee as to the repayment 
of capital or the performance of any product or rate of return referred to in this material is made by 
BIMAL or any entity in the BlackRock group of companies.  
 
No part of this material may be reproduced or distributed in any manner without the prior written 
permission of BIMAL.  
 
© 2025 BlackRock, Inc. or its affiliates. All Rights reserved. BLACKROCK, BLACKROCK SOLUTIONS, 
ALADDIN, iSHARES and the stylised i logo are registered and unregistered trademarks of BlackRock, 
Inc. or its affiliates. All other trademarks are those of their respective owners. 
 
 
** END ** 
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Annual Financial Report

• iShares Core MSCI World Ex Australia ESG (AUD Hedged) ETF
ARSN 607 996 458

• iShares Core MSCI World Ex Australia ESG ETF
ARSN 610 786 171

• iShares MSCI World ex Australia Minimum Volatility ETF 
ARSN 614 057 831

• iShares World Equity Factor ETF
ARSN 614 058 301

• iShares Global 100 (AUD Hedged) ETF
ARSN 602 618 744

• iShares S&P 500 (AUD Hedged) ETF
ARSN 602 618 691

• iShares MSCI Emerging Markets ex China ETF
ARSN 657 033 424

• iShares Core FTSE Global Infrastructure (AUD Hedged) ETF
ARSN 666 806 739 

• iShares Core FTSE Global Property Ex Australia (AUD Hedged) ETF
ARSN 666 807 647

• iShares Asia 50 ETF
ARSN 625 112 950

• iShares China Large-Cap ETF
ARSN 625 114 052

• iShares MSCI South Korea ETF
ARSN 625 114 212
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- 1 -

iShares International Funds
Directors’ Report

For the year ended 30 June 2025

Directors’ Report

Fund Objectives

iShares Core MSCI World Ex Australia ESG (AUD Hedged) ETF

iShares Core MSCI World Ex Australia ESG ETF

iShares MSCI World ex Australia Minimum Volatility ETF 

iShares World Equity Factor ETF

iShares Global 100 (AUD Hedged) ETF

iShares S&P 500 (AUD Hedged) ETF

iShares MSCI Emerging Markets ex China ETF 

iShares Core FTSE Global Infrastructure (AUD Hedged) ETF

iShares Core FTSE Global Property Ex Australia (AUD Hedged) ETF

iShares Asia 50 ETF

iShares China Large-Cap ETF

iShares MSCI South Korea ETF
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iShares International Funds
Directors’ Report

For the year ended 30 June 2025

Directors’ Report (continued)

Principal Activities

Directors

Director Date appointed  
 
 
 
 

 

Review and Results of Operations

Results

GL63200070200 GL63200070500
iShares Core MSCI World Ex Australia 

ESG (AUD Hedged) ETF
iShares Core MSCI World Ex Australia 

ESG ETF
Year ended Year ended

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

70,131 152,672
6,059 12,924

GL63200070800 GL63200070700
iShares MSCI World ex Australia 

Minimum Volatility ETF
iShares World Equity Factor ETF

Year ended Year ended
30 June 

2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

14,683 29,408
3,845 8,835
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iShares International Funds
Directors’ Report

For the year ended 30 June 2025

Directors’ Report (continued)

GL63200067800 GL63200067900
iShares Global 100 (AUD Hedged) ETF iShares S&P 500 (AUD Hedged) ETF

Year ended Year ended
30 June 

2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

61,210 301,148
4,135 17,925

GL63200665100
iShares MSCI Emerging Markets ex 

China ETF
Year ended

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

19,403
59 –

GL63200496900 GL63200497000
iShares Core FTSE Global 

Infrastructure (AUD Hedged) ETF
iShares Core FTSE Global Property Ex 

Australia (AUD Hedged) ETF
Year ended Year ended

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

118,924 15,346
25,815 10,705

GL63200068200 GL63200069900
iShares Asia 50 ETF iShares China Large-Cap ETF

Year ended Year ended
30 June 

2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

187,071 131,232
18,331 9,848

Review and Results of Operations (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Directors’ Report

For the year ended 30 June 2025

Directors’ Report (continued)

 

GL63200069100
iShares MSCI South Korea ETF

Year ended
30 June 

2025 
$'000

 
 

16,754
3,355

Returns

Returns*

1 year 
% p.a.

  

9.81
14.89
18.96
19.36
10.27
13.68
11.66 –** –**
16.56 –** –**
8.15 –** –**
25.24
46.55
12.53

 

Reconciliation of Net Asset Value for Unit Pricing Purposes to Financial Reporting Purposes

iShares Core MSCI World Ex 
Australia ESG (AUD Hedged) 

ETF

iShares Core MSCI World Ex 
Australia ESG ETF

As at As at
30 June 

2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

753,430 1,231,489
– – – –

(7) 4

Net assets attributable to unitholders as at 30 June 753,423 1,231,493

Review and Results of Operations (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Directors’ Report

For the year ended 30 June 2025

Directors’ Report (continued)

iShares MSCI World ex 
Australia Minimum Volatility 

ETF

iShares World Equity Factor 
ETF

As at As at
30 June 

2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

81,330 169,848
– – – –
–* –*

Net assets attributable to unitholders as at 30 June 81,330 169,848

iShares Global 100 (AUD 
Hedged) ETF

iShares S&P 500 (AUD 
Hedged) ETF

As at As at
30 June 

2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

559,073 2,675,953
– – – –
4 70

Net assets attributable to unitholders as at 30 June 559,077 2,676,023

iShares MSCI Emerging 
Markets ex China ETF

As at
30 June 

2025 
$'000

 
 

254,220
– –

915

Net assets attributable to unitholders as at 30 June 255,135

iShares Core FTSE Global 
Infrastructure (AUD Hedged) 

ETF

iShares Core FTSE Global 
Property Ex Australia (AUD 

Hedged) ETF
As at As at

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

1,188,968 428,900
– – – –

(20) (6) 1

Net assets attributable to unitholders as at 30 June 1,188,948 428,894

Reconciliation of Net Asset Value for Unit Pricing Purposes to Financial Reporting Purposes (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Directors’ Report

For the year ended 30 June 2025

Directors’ Report (continued)

iShares Asia 50 ETF iShares China Large-Cap ETF
As at As at

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

950,713 404,178
– – – –

(60) – (8)

Net assets attributable to unitholders as at 30 June 950,653 404,170

iShares MSCI South Korea ETF
As at

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

139,530
– –

(3)

Net assets attributable to unitholders as at 30 June 139,527

Matters Subsequent to the End of the Financial Year

iShares Core MSCI World Ex Australia ESG (AUD Hedged) ETF

iShares Core MSCI World Ex Australia ESG ETF

iShares MSCI World ex Australia Minimum Volatility ETF

iShares World Equity Factor ETF

iShares Global 100 (AUD Hedged) ETF

iShares S&P 500 (AUD Hedged) ETF

iShares MSCI Emerging Markets ex China ETF

Reconciliation of Net Asset Value for Unit Pricing Purposes to Financial Reporting Purposes (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Directors’ Report

For the year ended 30 June 2025

Directors’ Report (continued)

iShares Core FTSE Global Infrastructure (AUD Hedged) ETF

iShares Core FTSE Global Property Ex Australia (AUD Hedged) ETF

iShares Asia 50 ETF

iShares China Large-Cap ETF

iShares MSCI South Korea ETF

Likely Developments and Expected Results of Operations

Fees Paid and Interests Held in the Funds by the Responsible Entity or its Associates

Matters Subsequent to the End of the Financial Year (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Directors’ Report

For the year ended 30 June 2025

Directors’ Report (continued)

Interests in the Funds

Value of Assets

Environmental Regulation

Rounding of Amounts

Additional Disclosure
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iShares International Funds
Directors’ Report

For the year ended 30 June 2025

Directors’ Report (continued)

Auditor's Independence Declaration

10

Director
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Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation. 

Member of Deloitte Asia Pacific Limited and the Deloitte organisation. 

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu 

ABN 74 490 121 060 

 

Quarter Quay Tower 

50 Bridge Tower 

Sydney, NSW, 2000 

Australia 

 

Tel:  +61 3 9671 7000 

Fax:  +61 3 9671 7001 

www.deloitte.com.au 

 

23 September 2025 

 

The Board of Directors 
BlackRock Investment Management (Australia) Limited 
Level 37 Chifley Tower, 2 Chifley Square 
Sydney, NSW 2000 

 

Dear Directors 

Auditor’s Independence Declaration to iShares S&P 500 (AUD Hedged) ETF, iShares Global 100 (AUD Hedged) ETF, 
iShares Core MSCI World Ex Australia ESG (AUD Hedged) ETF, iShares Core MSCI World Ex Australia ESG ETF, 
iShares World Equity Factor ETF, iShares MSCI World ex Australia Minimum Volatility ETF, iShares MSCI Emerging 
Markets ex China ETF, iShares Core FTSE Global Infrastructure (AUD Hedged) ETF, iShares Core FTSE Global 
Property Ex Australia (AUD Hedged) ETF, iShares Asia 50 ETF, iShares MSCI South Korea ETF and iShares China 
Large-Cap ETF (collectively "iShares International Funds") 

In accordance with section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001, I am pleased to provide the following declaration 
of independence to the directors of BlackRock Investment Management (Australia) Limited as Responsible Entity 
of iShares S&P 500 (AUD Hedged) ETF, iShares Global 100 (AUD Hedged) ETF, iShares Core MSCI World Ex Australia 
ESG (AUD Hedged) ETF, iShares Core MSCI World Ex Australia ESG ETF, iShares World Equity Factor ETF, iShares 
MSCI World ex Australia Minimum Volatility ETF, iShares MSCI Emerging Markets ex China ETF, iShares Core FTSE 
Global Infrastructure (AUD Hedged) ETF, iShares Core FTSE Global Property Ex Australia (AUD Hedged) ETF, iShares 
Asia 50 ETF, iShares MSCI South Korea ETF and iShares China Large-Cap ETF. 

As lead audit partner for the audit of the financial reports of iShares International Funds for the year ended 30 
June 2025, I declare that to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of: 

• The auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and 

• Any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit. 

Yours faithfully 

 

 

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu 

 

Jonathon Corbett 

Partner 

Chartered Accountants 
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iShares International Funds

For the year ended 30 June 2025

notes.

Notes

GL63200070200 GL63200070500
iShares Core MSCI World Ex 
Australia ESG (AUD Hedged) 

ETF

iShares Core MSCI World Ex 
Australia ESG ETF

Year ended Year ended

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

Investment income
Interest income 32 45

8,207 15,613

62,761 138,170
– 1 1 –

Total net investment income/(loss) 71,000 153,829

Expenses
10 673 975

Transaction costs 128 120
59 49
9 13 11

Total operating expenses 869 1,157

70,131 152,672

– – – –

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 70,131 152,672
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iShares International Funds

For the year ended 30 June 2025

notes.

Notes

GL63200070800 GL63200070700
iShares MSCI World ex 

Australia Minimum Volatility 
ETF

iShares World Equity Factor 
ETF

Year ended Year ended

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

Investment income
Interest income 9 7

1,961 2,986

13,027 27,047
12 1 10

Total net investment income/(loss) 15,009 30,050

Expenses
10 231 583

Transaction costs 33 21
54 30
8 8 –

Total operating expenses 326 642

14,683 29,408

– – – –

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 14,683 29,408
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iShares International Funds

For the year ended 30 June 2025

notes.

Notes

GL63200067800 GL63200067900
iShares Global 100 (AUD 

Hedged) ETF
iShares S&P 500 (AUD 

Hedged) ETF

Year ended Year ended

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

Investment income
Interest income 24 34 18

6,667 24,595

56,727 278,060
10 – – 626

30 – 1 –

Total net investment income/(loss) 63,448 303,316

Expenses
10 2,073 2,088

Transaction costs 112 51
53 29

– 8 – –

Total operating expenses 2,238 2,168

61,210 301,148

– – – –

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 61,210 301,148
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iShares International Funds

For the year ended 30 June 2025

notes.

Notes

GL63200665100
iShares MSCI Emerging 
Markets ex China ETF

Year ended

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

Investment income
Interest income 2 –

1,554 –

17,892
10 94 –

11 –

Total net investment income/(loss) 19,553

Expenses
10 130 –

Transaction costs 8 –
4 –
8 –

Total operating expenses 150 –

19,403

– –

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 19,403
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iShares International Funds

For the year ended 30 June 2025

notes.

Notes

GL63200496900 GL63200497000
iShares Core FTSE Global 

Infrastructure (AUD Hedged) 
ETF

iShares Core FTSE Global 
Property Ex Australia (AUD 

Hedged) ETF

Year ended Year ended

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

Investment income
Interest income 49 11 18

27,841 11,023

92,984 5,286
– – 3 –

Total net investment income/(loss) 120,874 16,330

Expenses
10 1,303 454 100

Transaction costs 381 156 88
228 303 100
38 71

Total operating expenses 1,950 984

118,924 15,346

– – – –

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 118,924 15,346

F
or

 p
er

so
na

l u
se

 o
nl

y



- 16 -

iShares International Funds

For the year ended 30 June 2025

notes.

Notes

GL63200068200 GL63200069900
iShares Asia 50 ETF iShares China Large-Cap ETF

Year ended Year ended

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

Investment income
Interest income 33 8 13

14,280 14,547

175,427 119,468
10 1,263 – –

Total net investment income/(loss) 191,003 134,028

Expenses
10 2,911 2,150

Transaction costs 976 562
45 75

– – 9 –

Total operating expenses 3,932 2,796

187,071 131,232

– – – –

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 187,071 131,232
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iShares International Funds

For the year ended 30 June 2025

notes.

Notes

GL63200069100
iShares MSCI South Korea ETF

Year ended

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

Investment income
Interest income 1

2,236

15,236

Total net investment income/(loss) 17,473

Expenses
10 557

Transaction costs 62
61
39 –

Total operating expenses 719

16,754

– –

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 16,754
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iShares International Funds
Statements of Financial Position

As at 30 June 2025

Statements of Financial Position

The above Statements of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Notes

GL63200070200 GL63200070500
iShares Core MSCI World Ex 
Australia ESG (AUD Hedged) 

ETF

iShares Core MSCI World Ex 
Australia ESG ETF

As at As at

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

Assets
2,954 5,131

loss 753,837 1,216,972
188 325

3,807 9,309
                                                                                        

Total assets 760,786 1,231,737

Liabilities

or loss 8 1,137 –*
43 65 18

6,183 179
                                                                                                    

Total liabilities 7,363 244

Net assets attributable to unitholders - equity 753,423 1,231,493
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iShares International Funds
Statements of Financial Position

As at 30 June 2025

Statements of Financial Position (continued)

The above Statements of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Notes

GL63200070800 GL63200070700
iShares MSCI World ex 

Australia Minimum Volatility 
ETF

iShares World Equity Factor 
ETF

As at As at

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

Assets
487 779

loss 78,932 164,496
19 65

1,930 4,612
                                                                                        

Total assets 81,368 169,952

Liabilities

or loss 8 –* –* –* –*
4 8

34 96
                                                                                                    

Total liabilities 38 104

Net assets attributable to unitholders - equity 81,330 169,848
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iShares International Funds
Statements of Financial Position

As at 30 June 2025

Statements of Financial Position (continued)

The above Statements of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Notes

GL63200067800 GL63200067900
iShares Global 100 (AUD 

Hedged) ETF
iShares S&P 500 (AUD 

Hedged) ETF

As at As at

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

Assets
2,431 1,874

loss 557,024 2,687,168
174 – –
854 3,253

                                                                                        
Total assets 560,483 2,692,295

Liabilities

or loss 8 963 478 88
43 – –

400 15,794
                                                                                                    

Total liabilities 1,406 16,272

Net assets attributable to unitholders - equity 559,077 2,676,023
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iShares International Funds
Statements of Financial Position

As at 30 June 2025

Statements of Financial Position (continued)

The above Statements of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Notes

GL63200665100
iShares MSCI Emerging 
Markets ex China ETF

As at

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

Assets
1,601

253,547
1,502 –

                                            
Total assets 256,650

Liabilities
8 4 –

1,511
                                                  

Total liabilities 1,515

Net assets attributable to unitholders - equity 255,135

Notes

GL63200496900 GL63200497000
iShares Core FTSE Global 

Infrastructure (AUD Hedged) 
ETF

iShares Core FTSE Global 
Property Ex Australia (AUD 

Hedged) ETF

As at As at

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

Assets
8,316 1,666

loss 1,181,723 425,920
287 203

3,872 2,247
                                                                                        

Total assets 1,194,198 430,036

Liabilities

or loss 8 2,492 750
67 15 –

2,691 377
                                                                                                    

Total liabilities 5,250 1,142

Net assets attributable to unitholders - equity 1,188,948 428,894
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iShares International Funds
Statements of Financial Position

As at 30 June 2025

Statements of Financial Position (continued)

The above Statements of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Notes

GL63200068200 GL63200069900
iShares Asia 50 ETF iShares China Large-Cap ETF

As at As at

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

Assets
1,728 1,490

loss 922,760 397,208
275 – 267 101

26,424 5,668
                                                                                        

Total assets 951,187 404,633

Liabilities

or loss 8 16 –* 14
52 – 36 –

466 413
                                                                                                    

Total liabilities 534 463

Net assets attributable to unitholders - equity 950,653 404,170

Notes

GL63200069100
iShares MSCI South Korea ETF

As at

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

Assets
519

137,137
140

1,854
                                            

Total assets 139,650

Liabilities
8 – 1

123
                                                  

Total liabilities 123

Net assets attributable to unitholders - equity 139,527
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iShares International Funds
Statements of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2025

Statements of Changes in Equity

The above Statements of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Notes

GL63200070200 GL63200070500
iShares Core MSCI World Ex 
Australia ESG (AUD Hedged) 

ETF

iShares Core MSCI World Ex 
Australia ESG ETF

Year ended Year ended

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

480,475 929,014

Comprehensive income for the year
70,131 152,672

– – – –
                                                                

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 70,131 152,672

Transactions with unitholders
222,686 190,313

Redemptions (14,132) (28,618)
322 1,036

(6,059) (12,924)
                                                                                        

Total transactions with unitholders 202,817 149,807

753,423 1,231,493

Notes

GL63200070800 GL63200070700
iShares MSCI World ex 

Australia Minimum Volatility 
ETF

iShares World Equity Factor 
ETF

Year ended Year ended

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

113,694 163,213

Comprehensive income for the year
14,683 29,408

– – – –
                                                                

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 14,683 29,408

Transactions with unitholders
49,424 6,912 –

Redemptions (93,087) (25,469)
461 4,619

(3,845) (8,835)
                                                                                        

Total transactions with unitholders (47,047) (22,773)

81,330 169,848
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iShares International Funds
Statements of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2025

Statements of Changes in Equity (continued)

The above Statements of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Notes

GL63200067800 GL63200067900
iShares Global 100 (AUD 

Hedged) ETF
iShares S&P 500 (AUD Hedged) 

ETF

Year ended Year ended

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

454,103 1,820,331

Comprehensive income for the year
61,210 301,148

– – – –
                                                                

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 61,210 301,148

Transactions with unitholders
136,136 972,241

Redemptions (88,374) (400,591)
137 819

(4,135) (17,925)
                                                                                        

Total transactions with unitholders 43,764 554,544

559,077 2,676,023
 

Notes

GL63200665100
iShares MSCI Emerging Markets 

ex China ETF

Year ended

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

784 –

Comprehensive income for the year
19,403

– –
                                

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 19,403

Transactions with unitholders
242,234

Redemptions (7,236) –
9 –

(59) –
                                            

Total transactions with unitholders 234,948

255,135
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iShares International Funds
Statements of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2025

Statements of Changes in Equity (continued)

The above Statements of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Notes

GL63200496900 GL63200497000
iShares Core FTSE Global 

Infrastructure (AUD Hedged) 
ETF

iShares Core FTSE Global 
Property Ex Australia (AUD 

Hedged) ETF

Year ended Year ended

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

580,098 182,527

Comprehensive income for the year
118,924 15,346

– – – –
                                                                

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 118,924 15,346

Transactions with unitholders
528,970 286,067

Redemptions (13,447) – (44,468)
218 127

(25,815) (10,705)
                                                                                        

Total transactions with unitholders 489,926 231,021

1,188,948 428,894

Notes

GL63200068200 GL63200069900
iShares Asia 50 ETF iShares China Large-Cap ETF

Year ended Year ended

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

760,826 361,836

Comprehensive income for the year
187,071 131,232

– – – –
                                                                

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 187,071 131,232

Transactions with unitholders
60,526 97,414

Redemptions (40,599) (176,894)
1,160 430

(18,331) (9,848)
                                                                                        

Total transactions with unitholders 2,756 (88,898)

950,653 404,170

F
or

 p
er

so
na

l u
se

 o
nl

y



- 26 -

iShares International Funds
Statements of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2025

Statements of Changes in Equity (continued)

The above Statements of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Notes

GL63200069100
iShares MSCI South Korea ETF

Year ended

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

133,928

Comprehensive income for the year
16,754

– –
                                

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 16,754

Transactions with unitholders
8,475

Redemptions (16,336)
61

(3,355)
                                            

Total transactions with unitholders (11,155)

139,527
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iShares International Funds
Statements of Cash Flows

For the year ended 30 June 2025

Statements of Cash Flows

The above Statements of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Notes

GL63200070200 GL63200070500
iShares Core MSCI World Ex 
Australia ESG (AUD Hedged) 

ETF

iShares Core MSCI World Ex 
Australia ESG ETF

Year ended Year ended

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

89,286 110,890

(299,180) (279,582)
Transaction costs (128) (120)

32 45
7,942 15,165
(623) (931)
(68) (62)

                                                                                                                                                                        

activities (202,739) (154,595)

219,633 189,902
(14,132) (28,618)
(5,737) (11,888)

                                                                                                                                                                                

activities 199,764 149,396

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents (2,975) (5,199)

5,867 10,212

62 118
                                                                                                                                                        

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2,954 5,131

– – 32 –

322 1,036
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iShares International Funds
Statements of Cash Flows

For the year ended 30 June 2025

Statements of Cash Flows (continued)

The above Statements of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Notes

GL63200070800 GL63200070700
iShares MSCI World ex 

Australia Minimum Volatility 
ETF

iShares World Equity Factor 
ETF

Year ended Year ended

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

110,291 59,795

(65,190) (39,167)
Transaction costs (33) (21)

9 7
1,982 2,975

19 12
(245) (582)
(62) (38)

                                                                                                                                                                        

activities 46,771 22,981

49,424 6,912 –
(93,087) (25,469)
(3,384) (4,216)

                                                                                                                                                                                

activities (47,047) (22,773)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents (276) 208

786 558

(23) 13 18
                                                                                                                                                        

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 487 779

– – –

461 4,619
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iShares International Funds
Statements of Cash Flows

For the year ended 30 June 2025

Statements of Cash Flows (continued)

The above Statements of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Notes

GL63200067800 GL63200067900
iShares Global 100 (AUD 

Hedged) ETF
iShares S&P 500 (AUD Hedged) 

ETF

Year ended Year ended

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

148,550 660,609

(195,724) (1,235,738)
Transaction costs (112) (51)

24 34 18
6,500 24,780

– – 587
35 – 1 –

(2,005) (1,955)
(36) (29)

                                                                                                                                                                        

activities (42,768) (551,762)

136,136 970,050
(88,374) (400,591)
(3,998) (17,106)

                                                                                                                                                                                

activities 43,764 552,353

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents 996 591

1,571 1,470

(136) (187)
                                                                                                                                                        

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2,431 1,874

17 – – –

137 819
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iShares International Funds
Statements of Cash Flows

For the year ended 30 June 2025

Statements of Cash Flows (continued)

The above Statements of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Notes

GL63200665100
iShares MSCI Emerging Markets 

ex China ETF

Year ended

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

8,332 –
(242,015)

Transaction costs (8) –
2 –

1,560 –
42 –
11 –

(58) –
(11) –

                                                                                    
(232,145)

240,784
(7,236) –

(50) –
                                                                                        

233,498

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,353
220 –
28 –

                                                                            
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,601

9 –F
or

 p
er

so
na

l u
se

 o
nl

y



- 31 -

iShares International Funds
Statements of Cash Flows

For the year ended 30 June 2025

Statements of Cash Flows (continued)

The above Statements of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Notes

GL63200496900 GL63200497000
iShares Core FTSE Global 

Infrastructure (AUD Hedged) 
ETF

iShares Core FTSE Global 
Property Ex Australia (AUD 

Hedged) ETF

Year ended Year ended

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

158,794 86,226

(669,037) (325,345)
Transaction costs (381) (156)

49 11 18
25,981 9,676
(1,162) (398)

(201) (302)
                                                                                                                                                                        

activities (485,957) (230,281)

528,970 286,067
(13,447) – (44,468)
(25,597) (10,578)

                                                                                                                                                                                

activities 489,926 231,021

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents 3,969 740

4,281 954 110

66 (28)
                                                                                                                                                        

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 8,316 1,666

– – 41 –

218 127
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iShares International Funds
Statements of Cash Flows

For the year ended 30 June 2025

Statements of Cash Flows (continued)

The above Statements of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Notes

GL63200068200 GL63200069900
iShares Asia 50 ETF iShares China Large-Cap ETF

Year ended Year ended

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

916,729 255,879

(924,076) (179,383)
Transaction costs (976) (562)

33 8 13
10,606 15,629
1,895 – –

– 4 –
(3,102) (2,161)

(67) (79)
                                                                                                                                                                        

activities 1,042 89,340

60,526 97,414
(40,599) (176,894)
(17,171) (9,418)

                                                                                                                                                                                

activities 2,756 (88,898)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents 3,798 442

275 1,160

(2,345) (112) 100
                                                                                                                                                        

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,728 1,490

1,160 430
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iShares International Funds
Statements of Cash Flows

For the year ended 30 June 2025

Statements of Cash Flows (continued)

The above Statements of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Notes

GL63200069100
iShares MSCI South Korea ETF

Year ended

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

32,624
(24,356)

Transaction costs (62)
1

2,417
6 –

(554)
(97)

                                                                                    
9,979

8,475
(16,336)
(3,294)

                                                                                        
(11,155)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1,176)
1,687

8
                                                                            

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 519

61
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

  1 General Information

  2 Summary of Material Accounting Policies

  (a) Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation

  (b) Financial Instruments

•

•
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

• 

• 

  (d) Net Assets Attributable to Unitholders

  2 Summary of Material Accounting Policies (continued)

  (b) Financial Instruments (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

• 
• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

  (e) Cash and Cash Equivalents

  (f) Margin Accounts

  (g) Investment Income and Expenses

  (h) Expenses

  2 Summary of Material Accounting Policies (continued)

  (d) Net Assets Attributable to Unitholders (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

  (i) Income Tax

  (j) Distributions to Unitholders

  (k) Increase/Decrease in Net Assets Attributable to Unitholders

  (l) Foreign Currency Translation

  (m) Receivables

  2 Summary of Material Accounting Policies (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

  (n) Payables

  (o) Creations and Redemptions

  (p) Goods and Services Tax (GST)

  (q) New Accounting Standards and Interpretations

  (r) Use of Estimates and Critical Accounting Judgments

  (s) Rounding of Amounts

  2 Summary of Material Accounting Policies (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

  (t) Cash Held on Collateral

  3 Financial Risk Management

  (a) Market Risk

(i) Price Risk 

  2 Summary of Material Accounting Policies (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

iShares Core MSCI World Ex Australia ESG (AUD Hedged) ETF
30 June 2025

$'000
Notional Principal Amount                   Fair Value Notional Principal Amount                   
Asset Liability Net Asset Net

International 2,999 –    2,999 71 –    

contracts 2,218,143 (2,208,337)    9,806 9,806    

iShares Core MSCI World Ex Australia ESG ETF
30 June 2025

$'000
Notional Principal Amount                   Fair Value Notional Principal Amount                   
Asset Liability Net Asset Net

International 3,886 –    3,886 87 –    

contracts 7,657 (7,657)    – –   

iShares MSCI World ex Australia Minimum Volatility ETF
30 June 2025

$'000
Notional Principal Amount                   Fair Value Notional Principal Amount                   
Asset Liability Net Asset Net

International 205 –    205 4 –    1

contracts 2,462 (2,462)    – –    – –

iShares World Equity Factor ETF
30 June 2025

$'000
Notional Principal Amount                   Fair Value Notional Principal Amount                   
Asset Liability Net Asset Net

International 337 –    337 7 –    1

contracts 5,928 (5,928)    – –    – –

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (a) Market Risk (continued)

(i) Price Risk  (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

iShares Global 100 (AUD Hedged) ETF
30 June 2025

$'000
Notional Principal Amount                   Fair Value Notional Principal Amount                   
Asset Liability Net Asset Net

International 2,795 –    2,795 68 –    1

contracts 1,635,121 (1,627,977)    7,144 7,144    

iShares S&P 500 (AUD Hedged) ETF
30 June 2025

$'000
Notional Principal Amount                   Fair Value Notional Principal Amount                   
Asset Liability Net Asset Net

contracts 7,796,246 (7,752,073)    44,173 44,173    

iShares MSCI Emerging Markets ex China ETF
30 June 2025

$'000
Notional Principal Amount                   Fair Value Notional Principal Amount                   
Asset Liability Net Asset Net

contracts 2,919 (2,923)    (4 ) (4) – –    – –

iShares Core FTSE Global Infrastructure (AUD Hedged) ETF
30 June 2025

$'000
Notional Principal Amount                   Fair Value Notional Principal Amount                   
Asset Liability Net Asset Net

International 8,659 –    8,659 140 –    11

contracts 3,372,583 (3,359,999)    12,584 12,584    

iShares Core FTSE Global Property Ex Australia (AUD Hedged) ETF
30 June 2025

$'000
Notional Principal Amount                   Fair Value Notional Principal Amount                   
Asset Liability Net Asset Net

International 3,416 –    3,416 9 –    8

contracts 1,305,762 (1,299,921)    5,841 5,841    

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (a) Market Risk (continued)

(i) Price Risk  (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

iShares Asia 50 ETF
30 June 2025

$'000
Notional Principal Amount                   Fair Value Notional Principal Amount                   
Asset Liability Net Asset Net

International 4,481 –    4,481 36 – –    – –

contracts 46,615 (46,631)    (16 ) (16)    – –

iShares China Large-Cap ETF
30 June 2025

$'000
Notional Principal Amount                   Fair Value Notional Principal Amount                   
Asset Liability Net Asset Net

International 2,439 –    2,439 (13) –    

contracts 4,527 (4,528)    (1 ) (1)    – –

iShares MSCI South Korea ETF
30 June 2025

$'000
Notional Principal Amount                   Fair Value Notional Principal Amount                   
Asset Liability Net Asset Net

International 353 –    353 18 –    

contracts 1,751 (1,750)    1 1    
  

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (a) Market Risk (continued)

(i) Price Risk  (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

  (ii) Foreign Exchange Risk

 

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (a) Market Risk (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

GL63200070200

Total

iShares Core MSCI World Ex Australia ESG (AUD Hedged) ETF
United 

States Dollar
European 

Euro
Japanese 

Yen
British 
Pound

Canadian 
Dollar

Other 
Currencies

30 June 2025 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000

Assets
2,329 83 90 23 50 379 2,954

551,441 60,139 46,274 24,709 22,634 48,640 753,837
188 – – – – – 188
207 84 70 105 30 3,311 3,807

.

Total assets 554,165 60,306 46,434 24,837 22,714 52,330 760,786

Liabilities

24 775 14 5 3 316 1,137
43 – – – – – 43

4,361 673 409 148 74 518 6,183
.

Total liabilities 4,428 1,448 423 153 77 834 7,363
.

Total currency exposure 549,737 58,858 46,011 24,684 22,637 51,496 753,423

Increase/(decrease) in 
exposure from currency 
derivatives (562,022) (59,463) (47,349) (25,100) (23,014) 716,948 –

Total currency exposure (12,285) (605) (1,338) (416) (377) 768,444 753,423

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (a) Market Risk (continued)

  (ii) Foreign Exchange Risk (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

TotalDollar  Yen Pound Dollar
 

Assets

– – – – –

.

Total assets

Liabilities

1 1 – –
– – – – –

– –
.

Total liabilities –
.

Total currency exposure

Increase/(decrease) in 
exposure from currency 
derivatives –

Total currency exposure

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (a) Market Risk (continued)

  (ii) Foreign Exchange Risk (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

 

GL63200070500

Total

iShares Core MSCI World Ex Australia ESG ETF
United 

States Dollar
European 

Euro
Japanese 

Yen
British 
Pound

Canadian 
Dollar

Other 
Currencies

30 June 2025 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000

Assets
2,899 183 287 158 72 1,532 5,131

903,668 98,285 75,727 40,443 37,153 61,696 1,216,972
325 – – – – – 325

3,455 578 461 427 170 4,218 9,309
.

Total assets 910,347 99,046 76,475 41,028 37,395 67,446 1,231,737

Liabilities
– – – – – 65 65
– – – – – 179 179

.

Total liabilities – – – – – 244 244
.

Total currency exposure 910,347 99,046 76,475 41,028 37,395 67,202 1,231,493

Increase/(decrease) in 
exposure from currency 
derivatives (4,287) (425) (493) (359) (126) 5,690 –

Total currency exposure 906,060 98,621 75,982 40,669 37,269 72,892 1,231,493

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (a) Market Risk (continued)

  (ii) Foreign Exchange Risk (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

TotalDollar Yen  Pound Dollar
 

Assets

– – – – –

.

Total assets

Liabilities

– – – – 10
18 – – – – – 18

– –
.

Total liabilities –
.

Total currency exposure

Increase/(decrease) in 
exposure from currency 
derivatives – – –

Total currency exposure

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (a) Market Risk (continued)

  (ii) Foreign Exchange Risk (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

GL63200070800

Total

iShares MSCI World ex Australia Minimum Volatility ETF
United 

States Dollar
Japanese 

Yen
European 

Euro
Canadian 

Dollar Swiss Francs
Other 

Currencies
30 June 2025 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000

Assets
232 132 38 4 9 72 487

53,261 8,460 7,699 2,124 1,770 5,618 78,932
19 – – – – – 19

1,088 194 219 38 276 115 1,930
.

Total assets 54,600 8,786 7,956 2,166 2,055 5,805 81,368

Liabilities
4 – – – – – 4
– – – – – 34 34

.

Total liabilities 4 – – – – 34 38
.

Total currency exposure 54,596 8,786 7,956 2,166 2,055 5,771 81,330

Increase/(decrease) in 
exposure from currency 
derivatives (1,122) (281) (211) (34) (43) 1,691 –

Total currency exposure 53,474 8,505 7,745 2,132 2,012 7,462 81,330

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (a) Market Risk (continued)

  (ii) Foreign Exchange Risk (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

TotalDollar Yen Dollar
 

Assets

– – – – –

.

Total assets

Liabilities
– – – – –

– – – – –
.

Total liabilities – – – –
.

Total currency exposure

Increase/(decrease) in 
exposure from currency 
derivatives –

Total currency exposure

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (a) Market Risk (continued)

  (ii) Foreign Exchange Risk (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

GL63200070700

Total

iShares World Equity Factor ETF
United 

States Dollar
European 

Euro
Japanese 

Yen
Canadian 

Dollar
British 
Pound

Other 
Currencies

30 June 2025 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000

Assets
474 30 74 14 29 158 779

114,074 14,348 12,157 4,900 4,664 14,353 164,496
45 8 12 – – – 65

3,060 520 272 141 202 417 4,612
.

Total assets 117,653 14,906 12,515 5,055 4,895 14,928 169,952

Liabilities
8 – – – – – 8
– – – – – 96 96

.

Total liabilities 8 – – – – 96 104
.

Total currency exposure 117,645 14,906 12,515 5,055 4,895 14,832 169,848

Increase/(decrease) in 
exposure from currency 
derivatives (3,342) (446) (286) (126) (185) 4,385 –

Total currency exposure 114,303 14,460 12,229 4,929 4,710 19,217 169,848

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (a) Market Risk (continued)

  (ii) Foreign Exchange Risk (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

TotalDollar Yen  Pound Dollar
 

Assets

– – – –

.

Total assets

Liabilities
– – – – –

– – – – –
.

Total liabilities – – – –
.

Total currency exposure

Increase/(decrease) in 
exposure from currency 
derivatives –

Total currency exposure

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (a) Market Risk (continued)

  (ii) Foreign Exchange Risk (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

GL63200067800

Total

iShares Global 100 (AUD Hedged) ETF
United 

States Dollar
European 

Euro
British 
Pound Swiss Francs

Japanese 
Yen

Other 
Currencies

30 June 2025 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000

Assets
1,742 34 101 28 60 466 2,431

445,190 44,090 21,681 17,107 11,799 17,157 557,024
174 – – – – – 174
155 176 51 422 16 34 854

.

Total assets 447,261 44,300 21,833 17,557 11,875 17,657 560,483

Liabilities

19 608 1 186 3 146 963
43 – – – – – 43

– – – – – 400 400
.

Total liabilities 62 608 1 186 3 546 1,406
.

Total currency exposure 447,199 43,692 21,832 17,371 11,872 17,111 559,077

Increase/(decrease) in 
exposure from currency 
derivatives (453,915) (43,971) (22,872) (17,291) (12,426) 550,475 –

Total currency exposure (6,716) (279) (1,040) 80 (554) 567,586 559,077

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (a) Market Risk (continued)

  (ii) Foreign Exchange Risk (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

TotalDollar  Pound Yen
 

Assets

– – – – –

.

Total assets

Liabilities

1 1 – 1
– – – – –

– – – – –
.

Total liabilities 10 1 – 1
.

Total currency exposure

Increase/(decrease) in 
exposure from currency 
derivatives –

Total currency exposure

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (a) Market Risk (continued)

  (ii) Foreign Exchange Risk (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

GL63200067900

Total

iShares S&P 500 (AUD 
Hedged) ETF

United 
States Dollar

Australian 
Dollar

30 June 2025 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000

Assets
753 1,121 1,874

2,642,517 44,651 2,687,168
– 3,253 3,253

.

Total assets 2,643,270 49,025 2,692,295

Liabilities
150 328 478

15,374 420 15,794
.

Total liabilities 15,524 748 16,272
.

Total currency exposure 2,627,746 48,277 2,676,023

Increase/(decrease) in exposure from currency derivatives (2,689,856) 2,689,856 –

Total currency exposure (62,110) 2,738,133 2,676,023

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (a) Market Risk (continued)

  (ii) Foreign Exchange Risk (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

TotalDollar
Australian 

Dollar

Assets

.

Total assets

Liabilities
88

.

Total liabilities
.

Total currency exposure

Increase/(decrease) in exposure from currency derivatives –

Total currency exposure

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (a) Market Risk (continued)

  (ii) Foreign Exchange Risk (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

GL63200665100

Total

iShares MSCI Emerging Markets ex 
China ETF

United 
States Dollar

Australian 
Dollar

European 
Euro

30 June 2025 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000

Assets
1,545 39 17 1,601

253,547 – – 253,547
– 1,502 – 1,502

.

Total assets 255,092 1,541 17 256,650

Liabilities
– 4 – 4

1,438 73 – 1,511
.

Total liabilities 1,438 77 – 1,515
.

Total currency exposure 253,654 1,464 17 255,135

Increase/(decrease) in exposure from currency derivatives (49) 49 – –

Total currency exposure 253,605 1,513 17 255,135

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (a) Market Risk (continued)

  (ii) Foreign Exchange Risk (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

TotalDollar
Australian 

Dollar

Assets
–
–

.

Total assets –

Liabilities
–

.

Total liabilities –
.

Total currency exposure –

Total currency exposure –

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (a) Market Risk (continued)

  (ii) Foreign Exchange Risk (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

GL63200496900

Total

iShares Core FTSE Global Infrastructure (AUD Hedged) ETF
United 

States Dollar
Canadian 

Dollar
European 

Euro
Australian 

Dollar
British 
Pound

Other 
Currencies

30 June 2025 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000

Assets
3,633 267 1,056 2,998 – 362 8,316

683,463 126,477 127,844 92,510 50,826 100,603 1,181,723
287 – – – – – 287
610 277 266 1,570 1,039 110 3,872

.

Total assets 687,993 127,021 129,166 97,078 51,865 101,075 1,194,198

Liabilities

25 18 1,824 340 10 275 2,492
67 – – – – – 67
20 – 877 902 360 532 2,691

.

Total liabilities 112 18 2,701 1,242 370 807 5,250
.

Total currency exposure 687,881 127,003 126,465 95,836 51,495 100,268 1,188,948

Increase/(decrease) in 
exposure from currency 
derivatives (703,162) (129,551) (128,151) 1,115,013 (51,469) (102,680) –

Total currency exposure (15,281) (2,548) (1,686) 1,210,849 26 (2,412) 1,188,948

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (a) Market Risk (continued)

  (ii) Foreign Exchange Risk (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

TotalDollar Dollar
Australian 

Dollar  Pound
 

Assets

– – – – –

.

Total assets

Liabilities

– 1 – – 11
– – – – –

8 –
.

Total liabilities –
.

Total currency exposure

Increase/(decrease) in 
exposure from currency 
derivatives –

Total currency exposure

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (a) Market Risk (continued)

  (ii) Foreign Exchange Risk (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

GL63200497000

Total

iShares Core FTSE Global Property Ex Australia (AUD Hedged) ETF
United 

States Dollar
European 

Euro
Japanese 

Yen
British 
Pound

Singapore 
Dollar

Other 
Currencies

30 June 2025 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000

Assets
562 356 51 17 72 608 1,666

299,589 27,836 24,333 18,591 11,796 43,775 425,920
137 66 – – – – 203

1,290 151 200 374 – 232 2,247
.

Total assets 301,578 28,409 24,584 18,982 11,868 44,615 430,036

Liabilities

21 380 7 3 2 337 750
– 15 – – – – 15
– – – 175 – 202 377

.

Total liabilities 21 395 7 178 2 539 1,142
.

Total currency exposure 301,557 28,014 24,577 18,804 11,866 44,076 428,894

Increase/(decrease) in 
exposure from currency 
derivatives (310,479) (27,821) (25,544) (19,050) (12,173) 395,067 –

Total currency exposure (8,922) 193 (967) (246) (307) 439,143 428,894

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (a) Market Risk (continued)

  (ii) Foreign Exchange Risk (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

TotalDollar Yen  Pound Dollar
 

Assets
10

– – – –
–

.

Total assets

Liabilities

– 1 – –
– – – – –

.

Total liabilities – 1 – –
.

Total currency exposure

Increase/(decrease) in 
exposure from currency 
derivatives –

Total currency exposure

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (a) Market Risk (continued)

  (ii) Foreign Exchange Risk (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

GL63200068200

Total

iShares Asia 50 ETF
Hong Kong 

Dollar
New Taiwan 

Dollar
South 

Korean Won
Singapore 

Dollar
United 

States Dollar
Other 

Currencies
30 June 2025 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000

Assets
566 64 496 65 173 364 1,728

424,118 310,142 140,155 48,309 36 – 922,760
– – – – 275 – 275

11,951 9,634 3,594 1,208 – 37 26,424
.

Total assets 436,635 319,840 144,245 49,582 484 401 951,187

Liabilities

1 13 2 – – – 16
– – – – 52 – 52
– – – – – 466 466

.

Total liabilities 1 13 2 – 52 466 534
.

Total currency exposure 436,634 319,827 144,243 49,582 432 (65) 950,653

Increase/(decrease) in 
exposure from currency 
derivatives (10,881) (7,907) (3,407) (1,143) 78 23,260 –

Total currency exposure 425,753 311,920 140,836 48,439 510 23,195 950,653

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (a) Market Risk (continued)

  (ii) Foreign Exchange Risk (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

TotalDollar
Australian 

Dollar

Assets

–

.

Total assets

Liabilities
–

.

Total liabilities –
.

Total currency exposure

Total currency exposure

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (a) Market Risk (continued)

  (ii) Foreign Exchange Risk (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

GL63200069900

Total

iShares China Large-Cap ETF
Hong Kong 

Dollar
United 

States Dollar
Australian 

Dollar
30 June 2025 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000

Assets
1,070 278 142 1,490

397,208 – – 397,208
– 267 – 267

5,632 – 36 5,668
.

Total assets 403,910 545 178 404,633

Liabilities
1 13 – 14
– 36 – 36
– – 413 413

.

Total liabilities 1 49 413 463
.

Total currency exposure 403,909 496 (235) 404,170

Increase/(decrease) in exposure from currency derivatives (4,440) – 4,440 –

Total currency exposure 399,469 496 4,205 404,170

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (a) Market Risk (continued)

  (ii) Foreign Exchange Risk (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

TotalDollar Dollar
Australian 

Dollar

Assets

– –
– 101 – 101

–
.

Total assets

Liabilities
– –
– –

.

Total liabilities –
.

Total currency exposure

Increase/(decrease) in exposure from currency derivatives 81 –

Total currency exposure

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (a) Market Risk (continued)

  (ii) Foreign Exchange Risk (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

GL63200069100

Total

iShares MSCI South Korea ETF
South 

Korean Won
Australian 

Dollar
United 

States Dollar
30 June 2025 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000 A$'000

Assets
436 71 12 519

137,136 1 – 137,137
140 – – 140

1,846 8 – 1,854
.

Total assets 139,558 80 12 139,650

Liabilities
– 123 – 123

.

Total liabilities – 123 – 123
.

Total currency exposure 139,558 (43) 12 139,527

Increase/(decrease) in exposure from currency derivatives (1,751) 1,751 – –

Total currency exposure 137,807 1,708 12 139,527

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (a) Market Risk (continued)

  (ii) Foreign Exchange Risk (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

Total
Australian 

Dollar Dollar

Assets

–
– –

–
.

Total assets

Liabilities
1 – – 1

–
.

Total liabilities –
.

Total currency exposure

Increase/(decrease) in exposure from currency derivatives –

Total currency exposure

(iii) Interest Rate Risk 

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (a) Market Risk (continued)

  (ii) Foreign Exchange Risk (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

30 June 
2025 

$

 
 

$
3,098,521

5,391,330

502,570

836,269

2,561,767

1,874,373

1,600,714

8,536,378

1,854,351

1,950,675

1,721,205

658,939

  (b)  Summarised VaR Analysis

iShares Core MSCI World Ex Australia ESG (AUD Hedged) ETF
2025

$'000^ % %
28,178 3.74

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (a) Market Risk (continued)

(iii) Interest Rate Risk  (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

iShares Core MSCI World Ex Australia ESG ETF
2025

$'000^ % %
39,038 3.17

iShares MSCI World ex Australia Minimum Volatility ETF
2025

$'000^ % %
1,919 2.36

iShares World Equity Factor ETF
2025

$'000^ % %
5,061 2.98

iShares Global 100 (AUD Hedged) ETF
2025

$'000^ % %
21,860 3.91

iShares S&P 500 (AUD Hedged) ETF
2025

$'000^ % %
105,435 3.94

iShares MSCI Emerging Markets ex China ETF
2025

$'000^ % %
4,950 1.94

iShares Core FTSE Global Infrastructure (AUD Hedged) ETF
2025

$'000^ % %
34,717 2.92

iShares Core FTSE Global Property Ex Australia (AUD Hedged) ETF
2025

$'000^ % %
15,826 3.69

iShares Asia 50 ETF
2025

$'000^ % %
42,589 4.48

iShares China Large-Cap ETF
2025

$'000^ % %
18,996 4.70

iShares MSCI South Korea ETF
2025

$'000^ % %
5,525 3.96

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (b)  Summarised VaR Analysis (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

Detailed information about the models 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 
• 
• 
• 

• 
• 

  (c) Credit Risk Exposure

(i) Interest Bearing Securities

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (b)  Summarised VaR Analysis (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

(ii) Derivatives

            

(iii) Settlement of Securities Transactions

(iv) Other Credit Risk

  (d) Liquidity and Cash Flow Risk

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (c) Credit Risk Exposure (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

iShares Core MSCI World Ex Australia ESG (AUD Hedged) ETF

At 30 June 2025
Less than 
1 month

1 - 3  
months

3 - 6 
months

6 - 12  
months 1 - 3 years 3+ years Total

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Liabilities

loss – – – –
123,688 179,610 – – – – 303,298

(124,768) (179,667) – – – – (304,435)
(43) – – – – – (43)

(6,111) (72) – – – – (6,183)
Total liabilities (7,234) (129) – – – – (7,363)

    
Total

Liabilities

loss – – – –
– – – –
– – – –

– – – – –
– – – –

Total liabilities – – – –

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (d) Liquidity and Cash Flow Risk (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

iShares Core MSCI World Ex Australia ESG ETF

At 30 June 2025
Less than 
1 month

1 - 3  
months

3 - 6 
months

6 - 12  
months 1 - 3 years 3+ years Total

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Liabilities

loss – – – –
7,612 – – – – – 7,612

(7,612) – – – – – (7,612)
(65) – – – – – (65)
(90) (89) – – – – (179)

Total liabilities (155) (89) – – – – (244)

    
Total

Liabilities

loss – – – –
– – – – –

– – – –
– – – – –

– – – –
Total liabilities – – – –

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (d) Liquidity and Cash Flow Risk (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

iShares MSCI World ex Australia Minimum Volatility ETF

At 30 June 2025
Less than 
1 month

1 - 3  
months

3 - 6 
months

6 - 12  
months 1 - 3 years 3+ years Total

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Liabilities

loss – – – –
2,369 – – – – – 2,369

(2,369) – – – – – (2,369)
(4) – – – – – (4)

(17) (17) – – – – (34)
Total liabilities (21) (17) – – – – (38)

    
Total

Liabilities

loss – – – –
– – – – –
– – – – –
– – – – –

– – – –
Total liabilities – – – –

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (d) Liquidity and Cash Flow Risk (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

iShares World Equity Factor ETF

At 30 June 2025
Less than 
1 month

1 - 3  
months

3 - 6 
months

6 - 12  
months 1 - 3 years 3+ years Total

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Liabilities

loss – – – –
5,916 – – – – – 5,916

(5,916) – – – – – (5,916)
(8) – – – – – (8)

(48) (48) – – – – (96)
Total liabilities (56) (48) – – – – (104)

    
Total

Liabilities

loss – – – –
– – – – –
– – – – –
– – – – –

– – – –
Total liabilities – – – –

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (d) Liquidity and Cash Flow Risk (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

iShares Global 100 (AUD Hedged) ETF

At 30 June 2025
Less than 
1 month

1 - 3  
months

3 - 6 
months

6 - 12  
months 1 - 3 years 3+ years Total

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Liabilities

loss – – – –
103,501 93,717 – – – – 197,218

(104,414) (93,767) – – – – (198,181)
(43) – – – – – (43)

(208) (192) – – – – (400)
Total liabilities (1,164) (242) – – – – (1,406)

    
Total

Liabilities

loss – – – –
– – – –
– – – –

– – – – –
– – – –

Total liabilities – – – –

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (d) Liquidity and Cash Flow Risk (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

iShares S&P 500 (AUD Hedged) ETF

At 30 June 2025
Less than 
1 month

1 - 3  
months

3 - 6 
months

6 - 12  
months 1 - 3 years 3+ years Total

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Liabilities

loss – – – –
49,633 43,778 – – – – 93,411

(49,961) (43,928) – – – – (93,889)
(15,584) (210) – – – – (15,794)

Total liabilities (15,912) (360) – – – – (16,272)

    
Total

Liabilities

loss – – – –
– – – –
– – – –
– – – –

Total liabilities – – – –

iShares MSCI Emerging Markets ex China ETF

At 30 June 2025
Less than 
1 month

1 - 3  
months

3 - 6 
months

6 - 12  
months 1 - 3 years 3+ years Total

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Liabilities

loss – – – –
2,919 – – – – – 2,919

(2,923) – – – – – (2,923)
(1,471) (40) – – – – (1,511)

Total liabilities (1,475) (40) – – – – (1,515)

    
Total

Liabilities
– – – – –

Total liabilities – – – – –

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (d) Liquidity and Cash Flow Risk (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

iShares Core FTSE Global Infrastructure (AUD Hedged) ETF

At 30 June 2025
Less than 
1 month

1 - 3  
months

3 - 6 
months

6 - 12  
months 1 - 3 years 3+ years Total

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Liabilities

loss – – – –
224,801 376,200 – – – – 601,001

(227,199) (376,294) – – – – (603,493)
(67) – – – – – (67)

(2,549) (142) – – – – (2,691)
Total liabilities (5,014) (236) – – – – (5,250)

    
Total

Liabilities

loss – – – –
– – – –
– – – –

– – – – –
– – – –

Total liabilities – – – –

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (d) Liquidity and Cash Flow Risk (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

iShares Core FTSE Global Property Ex Australia (AUD Hedged) ETF

At 30 June 2025
Less than 
1 month

1 - 3  
months

3 - 6 
months

6 - 12  
months 1 - 3 years 3+ years Total

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Liabilities

loss – – – –
76,650 107,339 – – – – 183,989

(77,357) (107,382) – – – – (184,739)
(15) – – – – – (15)

(325) (52) – – – – (377)
Total liabilities (1,047) (95) – – – – (1,142)

    
Total

Liabilities

loss – – – –
– – – –
– – – –
– – – –

Total liabilities – – – –

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (d) Liquidity and Cash Flow Risk (continued)

F
or

 p
er

so
na

l u
se

 o
nl

y



- 80 -

iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

iShares Asia 50 ETF

At 30 June 2025
Less than 
1 month

1 - 3  
months

3 - 6 
months

6 - 12  
months 1 - 3 years 3+ years Total

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Liabilities

loss – – – –
46,600 – – – – – 46,600

(46,616) – – – – – (46,616)
(52) – – – – – (52)

(243) (223) – – – – (466)
Total liabilities (311) (223) – – – – (534)

    
Total

Liabilities

loss – – – –
– – – – –
– – – – –

– – – –
Total liabilities – – – –

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (d) Liquidity and Cash Flow Risk (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

iShares China Large-Cap ETF

At 30 June 2025
Less than 
1 month

1 - 3  
months

3 - 6 
months

6 - 12  
months 1 - 3 years 3+ years Total

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Liabilities

loss – – – –
4,440 – – – – – 4,440

(4,454) – – – – – (4,454)
(36) – – – – – (36)

(215) (198) – – – – (413)
Total liabilities (265) (198) – – – – (463)

    
Total

Liabilities

loss – – – –
– – – – –
– – – – –

– – – –
Total liabilities – – – –

iShares MSCI South Korea ETF

At 30 June 2025
Less than 
1 month

1 - 3  
months

3 - 6 
months

6 - 12  
months 1 - 3 years 3+ years Total

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Liabilities

(71) (52) – – – – (123)
Total liabilities (71) (52) – – – – (123)

    
Total

Liabilities

loss – – – –
– – – – –
– – – – –

– – – –
Total liabilities – – – –

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (d) Liquidity and Cash Flow Risk (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

  (e) Fair Values of Financial Assets and Liabilities

  (f) Fair Value Hierarchy

• 
• 

• 

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

iShares Core MSCI World Ex Australia ESG (AUD Hedged) ETF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

As at 30 June 2025 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Financial assets
Futures 71 – – 71

– 10,943 – 10,943
730,510 – – 730,510
12,313 – – 12,313

Total 742,894 10,943 – 753,837

Financial liabilities
– 1,137 – 1,137

Total – 1,137 – 1,137

Total

Financial assets
Futures – –

– –
– –
– –

Total –

Financial liabilities
– –

Total – –

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (f) Fair Value Hierarchy (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

 

iShares Core MSCI World Ex Australia ESG ETF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

As at 30 June 2025 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Financial assets
Futures 87 – – 87

1,196,501 – – 1,196,501
20,384 – – 20,384

Total 1,216,972 – – 1,216,972

Financial liabilities
– –* – –*

Total – –* – –*

Total

Financial assets
– –* – –*

– –
– –

Total –* –

Financial liabilities
Futures – –

– 10 – 10
Total 10 –

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (f) Fair Value Hierarchy (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

      
.

iShares MSCI World ex Australia Minimum Volatility ETF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

As at 30 June 2025 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Financial assets
Futures 4 – – 4

– –* – –*
77,665 – – 77,665
1,263 – – 1,263

Total 78,932 –* – 78,932

Financial liabilities
– –* – –*

Total – –* – –*

Total

Financial assets
Futures 1 – – 1

– –
– –

Total – –

Financial liabilities
– –* – –*

Total – –* – –*

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (f) Fair Value Hierarchy (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

 

iShares World Equity Factor ETF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

As at 30 June 2025 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Financial assets
Futures 7 – – 7

162,613 – – 162,613
1,876 – – 1,876

Total 164,496 – – 164,496

Financial liabilities
– –* – –*

Total – –* – –*

Total

Financial assets
Futures 1 – – 1

– –
– –

Total – –

Financial liabilities
– –* – –*

Total – –* – –*

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (f) Fair Value Hierarchy (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

 

iShares Global 100 (AUD Hedged) ETF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

As at 30 June 2025 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Financial assets
Futures 68 – – 68

– 8,107 – 8,107
547,037 – – 547,037

1,812 – – 1,812
Total 548,917 8,107 – 557,024

Financial liabilities
– 963 – 963

Total – 963 – 963

Total

Financial assets
Futures 1 – – 1

– –
– –
– –

Total –

Financial liabilities
– –

Total – –

          

iShares S&P 500 (AUD Hedged) ETF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

As at 30 June 2025 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Financial assets
– 44,651 – 44,651

2,642,517 – – 2,642,517
Total 2,642,517 44,651 – 2,687,168

Financial liabilities
– 478 – 478

Total – 478 – 478

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (f) Fair Value Hierarchy (continued)

F
or

 p
er

so
na

l u
se

 o
nl

y



- 88 -

iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

Total

Financial assets
– –

– –
Total –

Financial liabilities
– 88 – 88

Total – 88 – 88

iShares MSCI Emerging Markets ex China ETF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

As at 30 June 2025 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Financial assets
253,547 – – 253,547

Total 253,547 – – 253,547

Financial liabilities
– 4 – 4

Total – 4 – 4

Total

Financial assets
– –

Total – –

iShares Core FTSE Global Infrastructure (AUD Hedged) ETF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

As at 30 June 2025 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Financial assets
Futures 140 – – 140

– 15,076 – 15,076
1,027,820 – – 1,027,820

138,687 – – 138,687
Total 1,166,647 15,076 – 1,181,723

Financial liabilities
– 2,492 – 2,492

Total – 2,492 – 2,492

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (f) Fair Value Hierarchy (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

Total

Financial assets
Futures 11 – – 11

– –
– –
– –

Total –

Financial liabilities
– –

Total – –

iShares Core FTSE Global Property Ex Australia (AUD Hedged) ETF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

As at 30 June 2025 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Financial assets
Futures 16 – – 16

– 6,584 – 6,584
34,943 – – 34,943

384,377 – – 384,377
Total 419,336 6,584 – 425,920

Financial liabilities
Futures 7 – – 7

– 743 – 743
Total 7 743 – 750

Total

Financial assets
Futures – –

– –
– –
– –

Total –

Financial liabilities
Futures 1 – – 1

– –
Total 1 –

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (f) Fair Value Hierarchy (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

 

iShares Asia 50 ETF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

As at 30 June 2025 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Financial assets
Futures 36 – – 36

922,724 – – 922,724
Total 922,760 – – 922,760

Financial liabilities
– 16 – 16

Total – 16 – 16

Total

Financial assets
– –

Total – –

Financial liabilities
– –* – –*

Total – –* – –*

iShares China Large-Cap ETF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

As at 30 June 2025 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Financial assets
397,208 – – 397,208

Total 397,208 – – 397,208

Financial liabilities
Futures 13 – – 13

– 1 – 1
Total 13 1 – 14

Total

Financial assets
– –

Total – –

Financial liabilities
Futures – –

– –* – –*
Total –* –

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (f) Fair Value Hierarchy (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

iShares MSCI South Korea ETF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

As at 30 June 2025 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Financial assets
Futures 18 – – 18

– 1 – 1
137,118 – – 137,118

Total 137,136 1 – 137,137

Total

Financial assets
Futures – –

– –
– –

Total –

Financial liabilities
– 1 – 1

Total – 1 – 1

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

  (f) Fair Value Hierarchy (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

iShares Core MSCI World Ex Australia ESG (AUD Hedged) ETF

Gross amount of 
 

instruments 
presented in the 

Statement of 
Financial Position

Amounts subject 
to 

master netting 
arrangements

Net amount  
excluding 
collateral

Cash collateral  
received/posted Net amount

30 June 2025 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Financial assets – – – –
11,014 758 10,256 43 10,213

Total 11,014 758 10,256 43 10,213

Financial liabilities – – – –
1,137 758 379 188 191

Total 1,137 758 379 188 191

 
 

instruments 
 

Statement of 
Financial Position

to 
 

Net amount  

collateral
 

Net amount

Financial assets – – – –

Total

Financial liabilities – – – –
–

Total –

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

iShares Core MSCI World Ex Australia ESG ETF

Gross amount of 
 

instruments 
presented in the 

Statement of 
Financial Position

Amounts subject 
to 

master netting 
arrangements

Net amount  
excluding 
collateral

Cash collateral  
received/posted Net amount

30 June 2025 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Financial assets – – – –
87 – 87 65 22

Total 87 – 87 65 22

Financial liabilities – – – –
–* – –* –* –

Total –* – –* –* –

 
 

instruments 
 

Statement of 
Financial Position

to 
 

Net amount  

collateral
 

Net amount

Financial assets – – – –
–* –* – – –

Total –* –* – – –

Financial liabilities – – – –
–* –

Total –* –

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

iShares MSCI World ex Australia Minimum Volatility ETF

Gross amount of 
 

instruments 
presented in the 

Statement of 
Financial Position

Amounts subject 
to 

master netting 
arrangements

Net amount  
excluding 
collateral

Cash collateral  
received/posted Net amount

30 June 2025 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Financial assets – – – –
4 –* 4 4 –*

Total 4 –* 4 4 –*

Financial liabilities – – – –
–* –* –* –* –

Total –* –* –* –* –

 
 

instruments 
 

Statement of 
Financial Position

to 
 

Net amount  

collateral
 

Net amount

Financial assets – – – –
1 –* 1 1 –

Total 1 –* 1 1 –

Financial liabilities – – – –
–* –* –* – –*

Total –* –* –* – –*

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

iShares World Equity Factor ETF

Gross amount of 
 

instruments 
presented in the 

Statement of 
Financial Position

Amounts subject 
to 

master netting 
arrangements

Net amount  
excluding 
collateral

Cash collateral  
received/posted Net amount

30 June 2025 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Financial assets – – – –
7 – 7 7 –

Total 7 – 7 7 –

Financial liabilities – – – –
–* – –* –* –

Total –* – –* –* –

 
 

instruments 
 

Statement of 
Financial Position

to 
 

Net amount  

collateral
 

Net amount

Financial assets – – – –
1 –* 1 1 –

Total 1 –* 1 1 –

Financial liabilities – – – –
–* –* –* – –*

Total –* –* –* – –*

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

iShares Global 100 (AUD Hedged) ETF

Gross amount of 
 

instruments 
presented in the 

Statement of 
Financial Position

Amounts subject 
to 

master netting 
arrangements

Net amount  
excluding 
collateral

Cash collateral  
received/posted Net amount

30 June 2025 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Financial assets – – – –
8,175 421 7,754 43 7,711

Total 8,175 421 7,754 43 7,711

Financial liabilities – – – –
963 421 542 174 368

Total 963 421 542 174 368

 
 

instruments 
 

Statement of 
Financial Position

to 
 

Net amount  

collateral
 

Net amount

Financial assets – – – –

Total

Financial liabilities – – – –
–

Total –

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

iShares S&P 500 (AUD Hedged) ETF

Gross amount of 
 

instruments 
presented in the 

Statement of 
Financial Position

Amounts subject 
to 

master netting 
arrangements

Net amount  
excluding 
collateral

Cash collateral  
received/posted Net amount

30 June 2025 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Financial assets – – – –
44,651 478 44,173 – 44,173

Total 44,651 478 44,173 – 44,173

Financial liabilities – – – –
478 478 – – –

Total 478 478 – – –

 
 

instruments 
 

Statement of 
Financial Position

to 
 

Net amount  

collateral
 

Net amount

Financial assets – – – –
–

Total –

Financial liabilities – – – –
88 –* – –*

Total 88 –* – –*

iShares MSCI Emerging Markets ex China ETF

Gross amount of 
 

instruments 
presented in the 

Statement of 
Financial Position

Amounts subject 
to 

master netting 
arrangements

Net amount  
excluding 
collateral

Cash collateral  
received/posted Net amount

30 June 2025 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Financial liabilities – – – –
4 – 4 – 4

Total 4 – 4 – 4

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

iShares Core FTSE Global Infrastructure (AUD Hedged) ETF

Gross amount of 
 

instruments 
presented in the 

Statement of 
Financial Position

Amounts subject 
to 

master netting 
arrangements

Net amount  
excluding 
collateral

Cash collateral  
received/posted Net amount

30 June 2025 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Financial assets – – – –
15,216 1,269 13,947 287 13,660

Total 15,216 1,269 13,947 287 13,660

Financial liabilities – – – –
2,492 1,269 1,223 67 1,156

Total 2,492 1,269 1,223 67 1,156

 
 

instruments 
 

Statement of 
Financial Position

to 
 

Net amount  

collateral
 

Net amount

Financial assets – – – –

Total

Financial liabilities – – – –
–

Total –

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

iShares Core FTSE Global Property Ex Australia (AUD Hedged) ETF

Gross amount of 
 

instruments 
presented in the 

Statement of 
Financial Position

Amounts subject 
to 

master netting 
arrangements

Net amount  
excluding 
collateral

Cash collateral  
received/posted Net amount

30 June 2025 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Financial assets – – – –
6,600 670 5,930 15 5,915

Total 6,600 670 5,930 15 5,915

Financial liabilities – – – –
750 670 80 80 –

Total 750 670 80 80 –

 
 

instruments 
 

Statement of 
Financial Position

to 
 

Net amount  

collateral
 

Net amount

Financial assets – – – –
–

Total –

Financial liabilities – – – –

Total

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

iShares Asia 50 ETF

Gross amount of 
 

instruments 
presented in the 

Statement of 
Financial Position

Amounts subject 
to 

master netting 
arrangements

Net amount  
excluding 
collateral

Cash collateral  
received/posted Net amount

30 June 2025 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Financial assets – – – –
36 – 36 36 –

Total 36 – 36 36 –

Financial liabilities – – – –
16 – 16 16 –

Total 16 – 16 16 –

 
 

instruments 
 

Statement of 
Financial Position

to 
 

Net amount  

collateral
 

Net amount

Financial liabilities – – – –
–* – –* – –*

Total –* – –* – –*

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

iShares China Large-Cap ETF

Gross amount of 
 

instruments 
presented in the 

Statement of 
Financial Position

Amounts subject 
to 

master netting 
arrangements

Net amount  
excluding 
collateral

Cash collateral  
received/posted Net amount

30 June 2025 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Financial liabilities – – – –
14 – 14 14 –

Total 14 – 14 14 –

 
 

instruments 
 

Statement of 
Financial Position

to 
 

Net amount  

collateral
 

Net amount

Financial liabilities – – – –
– –

Total – –

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

iShares MSCI South Korea ETF

Gross amount of 
 

instruments 
presented in the 

Statement of 
Financial Position

Amounts subject 
to 

master netting 
arrangements

Net amount  
excluding 
collateral

Cash collateral  
received/posted Net amount

30 June 2025 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Financial assets – – – –
19 – 19 – 19

Total 19 – 19 – 19

 
 

instruments 
 

Statement of 
Financial Position

to 
 

Net amount  

collateral
 

Net amount

Financial assets – – – –
1 –

Total 1 –

Financial liabilities – – – –
1 1 – – –

Total 1 1 – – –

  4 Distributions to Unitholders

iShares Core MSCI World Ex Australia ESG (AUD 
Hedged) ETF
Year ended

30 June 
2025

 

$'000 CPU

3,271 34.78
2,788 27.40
6,059

  3 Financial Risk Management (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

iShares Core MSCI World Ex Australia ESG ETF
Year ended

30 June 
2025

 

$'000 CPU

7,239 43.27
5,685 30.99

12,924

iShares MSCI World ex Australia Minimum Volatility 
ETF

Year ended
30 June 

2025
 

$'000 CPU

3,145 106.87
700 35.09

3,845

iShares World Equity Factor ETF
Year ended

30 June 
2025

 

$'000 CPU

7,953 216.39
882 24.34

8,835

iShares Global 100 (AUD Hedged) ETF
Year ended

30 June 
2025

 

$'000 CPU

4,135 162.20
4,135

iShares S&P 500 (AUD Hedged) ETF
Year ended

30 June 
2025

 

$'000 CPU

17,925 49.83
17,925

iShares MSCI Emerging Markets ex China ETF
Year ended

30 June 
2025

 

$'000 CPU

59 25.79 – –
59 –

  4 Distributions to Unitholders (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

iShares Core FTSE Global Infrastructure (AUD 
Hedged) ETF
Year ended

30 June 
2025

 

$'000 CPU

4,112 17.50
6,243 22.70
7,219 22.70
8,241 22.70

25,815

iShares Core FTSE Global Property Ex Australia (AUD 
Hedged) ETF
Year ended

30 June 
2025

 

$'000 CPU

1,894 26.30
2,315 26.30
3,182 26.30
3,314 26.30

10,705

iShares Asia 50 ETF
Year ended

30 June 
2025

 

$'000 CPU

3,691 48.84
14,640 199.97
18,331

iShares China Large-Cap ETF
Year ended

30 June 
2025

 

$'000 CPU

906 9.82
8,942 145.57
9,848

iShares MSCI South Korea ETF
Year ended

30 June 
2025

 

$'000 CPU

3,355 258.67
3,355

  4 Distributions to Unitholders (continued)
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

  5 Net Assets Attributable to Unitholders

Movement in number of units and net assets attributable to unitholders during the year were as follows:
6/

iShares Core MSCI World Ex Australia ESG (AUD Hedged) ETF
30 June 

2025
 30 June 

2025
 

No.'000 $'000
9,403 480,475

year – – 70,131
4,456 222,686

Redemptions (275) (14,132)
6 322
– – (6,059)

Closing balance 13,5901 753,423

iShares Core MSCI World Ex Australia ESG ETF
30 June 

2025
 30 June 

2025
 

No.'000 $'000
16,733 929,014

year – – 152,672
3,300 190,313

Redemptions (495) (28,618)
18 1,036

– – (12,924)
Closing balance 19,5561 1,231,493

iShares MSCI World ex Australia Minimum Volatility ETF
30 June 

2025
 30 June 

2025
 

No.'000 $'000
2,943 113,694

year – – 14,683
1,120 49,424

Redemptions (2,240) (93,087)
12 461

– – (3,845)
Closing balance 1,8351 81,330
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iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

iShares World Equity Factor ETF
30 June 

2025
 30 June 

2025
 

No.'000 $'000
3,675 163,213

year – – 29,408
160 – 6,912 –

Redemptions (560) (25,469)
109 4,619

– – (8,835)
Closing balance 3,3841 169,848

iShares Global 100 (AUD Hedged) ETF
30 June 

2025
 30 June 

2025
 

No.'000 $'000
2,549 454,103

year – – 61,210
805 136,136

Redemptions (483) – (88,374)
1 1 137
– – (4,135)

Closing balance 2,8721 559,077

iShares S&P 500 (AUD Hedged) ETF
30 June 

2025
 30 June 

2025
 

No.'000 $'000
35,973 1,820,331

year – – 301,148
18,801 972,241

Redemptions (7,808) (400,591)
16 819

– – (17,925)
Closing balance 46,9821 2,676,023

iShares MSCI Emerging Markets ex China ETF
30 June 

2025
 30 June 

2025
 

No.'000 $'000
30 – 784 –

year – – 19,403
9,072 242,234

Redemptions (274) – (7,236) –
– – 9 –
– – (59) –

Closing balance 8,8281 255,135

  5 Net Assets Attributable to Unitholders (continued)
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iShares Core FTSE Global Infrastructure (AUD Hedged) ETF
30 June 

2025
 30 June 

2025
 

No.'000 $'000
23,500 580,098

year – – 118,924
19,700 528,970

Redemptions (500) – (13,447) –
8 1 218
– – (25,815)

Closing balance 42,7081 1,188,948

iShares Core FTSE Global Property Ex Australia (AUD Hedged) ETF
30 June 

2025
 30 June 

2025
 

No.'000 $'000
7,200 182,527

year – – 15,346
10,800 286,067

Redemptions (1,700) (44,468)
5 1 127
– – (10,705)

Closing balance 16,3051 428,894

iShares Asia 50 ETF
30 June 

2025
 30 June 

2025
 

No.'000 $'000
7,556 760,826

year – – 187,071
534 60,526

Redemptions (389) (40,599)
11 11 1,160

– – (18,331)
Closing balance 7,7121 950,653

iShares China Large-Cap ETF
30 June 

2025
 30 June 

2025
 

No.'000 $'000
9,222 361,836

year – – 131,232
1,772 97,414

Redemptions (3,748) (176,894)
9 430
– – (9,848)

Closing balance 7,2551 404,170

  5 Net Assets Attributable to Unitholders (continued)
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iShares MSCI South Korea ETF
30 June 

2025
 30 June 

2025
 

No.'000 $'000
1,297 133,928

year – – 16,754
88 8,475

Redemptions (155) (16,336)
1 – 61
– – (3,355)

Closing balance 1,2311 139,527

Capital Risk Management

iShares Core MSCI World Ex 
Australia ESG (AUD Hedged) 

ETF

iShares Core MSCI World Ex 
Australia ESG ETF

As at As at
30 June 

2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

Futures 71 87 –
10,943 – –

730,510 1,196,501
12,313 20,384

loss 753,837 1,216,972

iShares MSCI World ex 
Australia Minimum Volatility 

ETF

iShares World Equity Factor 
ETF

As at As at
30 June 

2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

Futures 4 1 7 1
77,665 162,613
1,263 1,876

loss 78,932 164,496

  5 Net Assets Attributable to Unitholders (continued)
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iShares Global 100 (AUD 
Hedged) ETF

iShares S&P 500 (AUD 
Hedged) ETF

As at As at
30 June 

2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

Futures 68 1 – –
8,107 44,651

547,037 – –
1,812 2,642,517

loss 557,024 2,687,168

                        

iShares MSCI Emerging 
Markets ex China ETF

As at
30 June 

2025 
$'000

 
 

253,547

253,547

iShares Core FTSE Global 
Infrastructure (AUD Hedged) 

ETF

iShares Core FTSE Global 
Property Ex Australia (AUD 

Hedged) ETF
As at As at

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

Futures 140 11 16
15,076 6,584

1,027,820 34,943
138,687 384,377

loss 1,181,723 425,920

   

iShares Asia 50 ETF iShares China Large-Cap ETF
As at As at

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

Futures 36 – – –
922,724 – 397,208

– – –

loss 922,760 397,208
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For the year ended 30 June 2025

iShares MSCI South Korea ETF
As at

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

Futures 18
1

137,118

137,137

  7 Receivables

iShares Core MSCI World Ex 
Australia ESG (AUD Hedged) 

ETF

iShares Core MSCI World Ex 
Australia ESG ETF

As at As at
30 June 

2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

– – 4,389 –
3,053 – 3,468

406 686
339 751

9 15

Total 3,807 9,309

iShares MSCI World ex 
Australia Minimum Volatility 

ETF

iShares World Equity Factor 
ETF

As at As at
30 June 

2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

1,568 4,333
77 125

280 145 100
5 9 11

Total 1,930 4,612

iShares Global 100 (AUD 
Hedged) ETF

iShares S&P 500 (AUD 
Hedged) ETF

As at As at
30 June 

2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

– –
– – 3,111

248 – –
– – 124

581 – –
25 18

Total 854 3,253
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For the year ended 30 June 2025

iShares MSCI Emerging 
Markets ex China ETF

As at
30 June 

2025 
$'000

 
 

1,450 –
52 –

Total 1,502 –

iShares Core FTSE Global 
Infrastructure (AUD Hedged) 

ETF

iShares Core FTSE Global 
Property Ex Australia (AUD 

Hedged) ETF
As at As at

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

– – 242
3,480 1,849

374 149
18 7

Total 3,872 2,247

iShares Asia 50 ETF iShares China Large-Cap ETF
As at As at

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

22,755 3,408
3,346 – 2,219

– – –
286 – 5
37 – 36

Total 26,424 5,668

iShares MSCI South Korea 
ETF
As at

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

1,691
142
13 –
8

Total 1,854

  7 Receivables (continued)
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iShares Core MSCI World Ex 
Australia ESG (AUD Hedged) 

ETF

iShares Core MSCI World Ex 
Australia ESG ETF

As at As at
30 June 

2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

Futures – – –
1,137 -* 10

or loss 1,137 –*

iShares MSCI World ex 
Australia Minimum Volatility 

ETF

iShares World Equity Factor 
ETF

As at As at
30 June 

2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

-* -*

or loss –* –* –* –*

iShares Global 100 (AUD 
Hedged) ETF

iShares S&P 500 (AUD 
Hedged) ETF

As at As at
30 June 

2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

963 478 88

or loss 963 478 88

iShares MSCI Emerging 
Markets ex China ETF

As at
30 June 

2025 
$'000

 
 

4 –

4 –

iShares Core FTSE Global 
Infrastructure (AUD 

Hedged) ETF

iShares Core FTSE Global 
Property Ex Australia (AUD 

Hedged) ETF
As at As at

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

Futures – – 7 1
2,492 743

or loss 2,492 750
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iShares Asia 50 ETF iShares China Large-Cap 
ETF

As at As at
30 June 

2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

Futures – – 13
16 1

or loss 16 –* 14

iShares MSCI South Korea 
ETF

As at
30 June 

2025 
$'000

 
 

– 1

– 1

  9 Payables

iShares Core MSCI World Ex 
Australia ESG (AUD Hedged) 

ETF

iShares Core MSCI World Ex 
Australia ESG ETF

As at As at
30 June 

2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

6,041 –
142 179

Total 6,183 179

iShares MSCI World ex 
Australia Minimum Volatility 

ETF

iShares World Equity Factor 
ETF

As at As at
30 June 

2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

34 96

Total 34 96

F
or

 p
er

so
na

l u
se

 o
nl

y



- 114 -

iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements
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iShares Global 100 (AUD 
Hedged) ETF

iShares S&P 500 (AUD 
Hedged) ETF

As at As at
30 June 

2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

– – 15,374
377 418
23 2 1

Total 400 15,794

iShares MSCI Emerging 
Markets ex China ETF

As at
30 June 

2025 
$'000

 
 

1,438
72 –
1 –

Total 1,511

iShares Core FTSE Global 
Infrastructure (AUD Hedged) 

ETF

iShares Core FTSE Global 
Property Ex Australia (AUD 

Hedged) ETF
As at As at

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

2,325 175 –
283 103
83 99

– 1 – –

Total 2,691 377

iShares Asia 50 ETF iShares China Large-Cap ETF
As at As at

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

442 394
24 – 19

– – –

Total 466 413

iShares MSCI South Korea 
ETF
As at

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

–
100
23

Total 123

  9 Payables (continued)
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  10 Related Party Transactions

Responsible Entity

Key management personnel

Directors

Director Date appointed  
 
 
 
 

Other key management personnel

Key management personnel unitholdings

iShares Core FTSE Global Infrastructure (AUD Hedged) ETF

Key management personnel compensation

Key management personnel loan disclosures
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Responsible Entity's fees and other transactions

At 30 June 2025

Management  
fees 

$

Fee rebates 
from related 

schemes 
$

iShares Core MSCI World Ex Australia ESG (AUD Hedged) ETF 672,838 –
iShares Core MSCI World Ex Australia ESG ETF 974,719 –
iShares MSCI World ex Australia Minimum Volatility ETF 231,016 –
iShares World Equity Factor ETF 582,638 –
iShares Global 100 (AUD Hedged) ETF 2,072,569 –
iShares S&P 500 (AUD Hedged) ETF 2,088,251 625,741
iShares MSCI Emerging Markets ex China ETF 130,313 94,279
iShares Core FTSE Global Infrastructure (AUD Hedged) ETF 1,302,981 –
iShares Core FTSE Global Property Ex Australia (AUD Hedged) ETF 453,702 –
iShares Asia 50 ETF 2,911,226 1,262,864
iShares China Large-Cap ETF 2,149,680 –
iShares MSCI South Korea ETF 557,358 –

 
fees 

$

 
from related 

 
$

–
–
–
–
–

81
–
–

–
–

Investments

  10 Related Party Transactions (continued)
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iShares Core MSCI World Ex Australia ESG (AUD Hedged) ETF

30 June 2025

Number of 
units held at 
period end 

Units

Fair value of  
units held at 
period end 

$

Value of units 
purchased  

during the period 
$

Value of units 
sold during  
the period 

$

Interest  
held at 

period end 
%

Distribution   
received/  
receivable 
during the 

period 
$

Blackrock Inc. 1,860 2,977,958 846,602 238,899 0.00** 42,155*

 
 

period end 

 
 

period end 
$

 
 

$

 
 

$

Interest  
 

period end 
%

 
 

 
period 

$

iShares Core MSCI World Ex Australia ESG ETF

30 June 2025

Number of 
units held at 
period end 

Units

Fair value of  
units held at 
period end 

$

Value of units 
purchased  

during the period 
$

Value of units 
sold during  
the period 

$

Interest  
held at 

period end 
%

Distribution   
received/  
receivable 
during the 

period 
$

Blackrock Inc. 3,078 4,928,041 687,185 175,052 0.00** 80,808*

 
 

period end 

 
 

period end 
$

 
 

$

 
 

$

Interest  
 

period end 
%

 
 

 
period 

$

iShares World Equity Factor ETF

30 June 2025

Number of 
units held at 
period end 

Units

Fair value of  
units held at 
period end 

$

Value of units 
purchased  

during the period 
$

Value of units 
sold during  
the period 

$

Interest  
held at 

period end 
%

Distribution   
received/  
receivable 
during the 

period 
$

Blackrock Inc. 142 227,350 – 25,978 0.00** 4,068*

 
 

period end 

 
 

period end 
$

 
 

$

 
 

$

Interest  
 

period end 
%

 
 

 
period 

$

–

  10 Related Party Transactions (continued)

Investments (continued)
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iShares S&P 500 (AUD Hedged) ETF

30 June 2025

Number of 
units held at 
period end 

Units

Fair value of  
units held at 
period end 

$

Value of units 
purchased  

during the period 
$

Value of units 
sold during  
the period 

$

Interest  
held at 

period end 
%

Distribution   
received/  
receivable 
during the 

period 
$

iShares Core S&P 500 
ETF (U.S.) 2,789,134 2,642,516,672 1,252,357,177 725,394,009 0.28 24,594,615*

 
 

period end 

 
 

period end 
$

 
 

$

 
 

$

Interest  
 

period end 
%

 
 

 
period 

$

iShares MSCI Emerging Markets ex China ETF

30 June 2025

Number of 
units held at 
period end 

Units

Fair value of  
units held at 
period end 

$

Value of units 
purchased  

during the period 
$

Value of units 
sold during  
the period 

$

Interest  
held at 

period end 
%

Distribution   
received/  
receivable 
during the 

period 
$

iShares MSCI Em Ex-China 
Ucits ETF ETP USD 29,541,954 253,546,463 242,167,087 7,243,733 5.81 1,554,381*

 
 

period end 

 
 

period end 
$

 
 

$

 
 

$

Interest  
 

period end 
%

 
 

 
period 

$

– –*

iShares Asia 50 ETF

30 June 2025

Number of 
units held at 

year end 
Units

Fair value of  
units held at 

year end 
$

Value of units 
purchased  

during the year 
$

Value of units 
sold during  

the year 
$

Interest  
held at 

year end 
%

Distribution   
received/  
receivable 
during the 

year 
$

iShares Asia 50 ETF (U.S.) – – 6,122,637 840,205,062 – –*

 
 

 

 
 

 
$

 
 

$

 
 

$

Interest  
 
 

%

 
 

 
 

$

  10 Related Party Transactions (continued)

Investments (continued)
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$

 
 

$

 
 

$

Interest  
 
 

%

 
 

 
 

$

– – – *

 
 

 

 
 

 
$

 
 

$

 
 

$

Interest  
 
 

%

 
 

 
 

$

– – – *

Related party schemes' unit holdings

Other transactions with the Funds

  11 Remuneration of Auditor

iShares Core MSCI World Ex 
Australia ESG (AUD Hedged) 

ETF

iShares Core MSCI World Ex 
Australia ESG ETF

30 June 
2025 

$

 
 

$

30 June 
2025 

$

 
 

$
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

13,098 11,761

1,353 1,353

Total 14,451 13,114

  10 Related Party Transactions (continued)

Investments (continued)
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iShares MSCI World ex 
Australia Minimum Volatility 

ETF

iShares World Equity Factor 
ETF

30 June 
2025 

$

 
 

$

30 June 
2025 

$

 
 

$
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

13,246 13,246

1,353 1,353

Total 14,599 14,599

iShares Global 100 (AUD 
Hedged) ETF

iShares S&P 500 (AUD 
Hedged) ETF

30 June 
2025 

$

 
 

$

30 June 
2025 

$

 
 

$
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

11,761 14,583

1,353 1,353

Total 13,114 15,936

iShares MSCI Emerging 
Markets ex China ETF
30 June 

2025 
$

 
 

$
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

13,246
1,353

Total 14,599

iShares Core FTSE Global 
Infrastructure (AUD Hedged) 

ETF

iShares Core FTSE Global 
Property Ex Australia (AUD 

Hedged) ETF
30 June 

2025 
$

 
 

$

30 June 
2025 

$

 
 

$
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

13,246 13,246

1,353 1,353

Total 14,599 14,599

  11 Remuneration of Auditor (continued)
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iShares Asia 50 ETF iShares China Large-Cap ETF
30 June 

2025 
$

 
 

$

30 June 
2025 

$

 
 

$
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

13,246 13,246

1,353 1,353

Total 14,599 14,599

iShares MSCI South Korea 
ETF

30 June 
2025 

$

 
 

$
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

13,246
1,353

Total 14,599

  11 Remuneration of Auditor (continued)
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iShares Core MSCI World Ex 
Australia ESG (AUD Hedged) 

ETF

iShares Core MSCI World Ex 
Australia ESG ETF

Year ended Year ended
30 June 

2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

70,131 152,672

(62,761) (138,170)

89,286 110,890

or loss (299,180) (279,582)
– – (32) –

(265) (417)
50 44

(202,739) (154,595)

(b) Components of cash and cash equivalents

2,954 5,131
Total cash and cash equivalents 2,954 5,131

plan 322 1,036
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iShares MSCI World ex 
Australia Minimum Volatility 

ETF

iShares World Equity Factor 
ETF

Year ended Year ended
30 June 

2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

14,683 29,408

(13,027) (27,047)

110,291 59,795

or loss (65,190) (39,167)
– – –

28 (9)
(14) 1 11

46,771 22,981

(b) Components of cash and cash equivalents

487 779
Total cash and cash equivalents 487 779

plan 461 4,619

(continued)
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iShares Global 100 (AUD 
Hedged) ETF

iShares S&P 500 (AUD 
Hedged) ETF

Year ended Year ended
30 June 

2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

61,210 301,148

(56,727) (278,060)

148,550 660,609

or loss (195,724) (1,235,738)
(17) – – –

(145) 145
85 134

(42,768) (551,762)

(b) Components of cash and cash equivalents

2,431 1,874
Total cash and cash equivalents 2,431 1,874

plan 137 819

(continued)
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iShares MSCI Emerging 
Markets ex China ETF

Year ended
30 June 

2025 
$'000

 
 

activities
19,403

(17,892)
8,332 –

(242,015)
(46) –

73 –
(232,145)

(b) Components of cash and cash equivalents

1,601
Total cash and cash equivalents 1,601

9 –

(continued)

F
or

 p
er

so
na

l u
se

 o
nl

y



- 126 -

iShares International Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

iShares Core FTSE Global 
Infrastructure (AUD Hedged) 

ETF

iShares Core FTSE Global 
Property Ex Australia (AUD 

Hedged) ETF
Year ended Year ended

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

118,924 15,346

(92,984) (5,286)

158,794 86,226

or loss (669,037) (325,345)
– – (41) –

(1,861) (1,309)
207 128

(485,957) (230,281)

(b) Components of cash and cash equivalents

8,316 1,666
Total cash and cash equivalents 8,316 1,666

plan 218 127

(continued)
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iShares Asia 50 ETF iShares China Large-Cap ETF
Year ended Year ended

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

30 June 
2025 
$'000

 
 

187,071 131,232

(175,427) (119,468)

916,729 255,879

or loss (924,076) (179,383)
(3,079) 1,086

(176) (6)
1,042 89,340

(b) Components of cash and cash equivalents

1,728 1,490
Total cash and cash equivalents 1,728 1,490

plan 1,160 430

(continued)
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iShares MSCI South Korea 
ETF

Year ended
30 June 

2025 
$'000

 
 

activities
16,754

(15,236)
32,624

(24,356)
187

6
9,979

(b) Components of cash and cash equivalents

519
Total cash and cash equivalents 519

61

  13 Segment Information
iShares Core MSCI World Ex Australia ESG (AUD Hedged) ETF

iShares Core MSCI World Ex Australia ESG ETF

iShares MSCI World ex Australia Minimum Volatility ETF 

(continued)
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iShares World Equity Factor ETF

iShares Global 100 (AUD Hedged) ETF

iShares S&P 500 (AUD Hedged) ETF

iShares MSCI Emerging Markets ex China ETF

iShares Core FTSE Global Infrastructure (AUD Hedged) ETF

iShares Core FTSE Global Property Ex Australia (AUD Hedged) ETF

iShares Asia 50 ETF

iShares China Large-Cap ETF

iShares MSCI South Korea ETF

  13 Segment Information (continued)
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  14 Events Occurring After the Reporting Period

iShares Core MSCI World Ex Australia ESG (AUD Hedged) ETF

iShares Core MSCI World Ex Australia ESG ETF

iShares MSCI World ex Australia Minimum Volatility ETF

iShares World Equity Factor ETF

iShares Global 100 (AUD Hedged) ETF

iShares S&P 500 (AUD Hedged) ETF

iShares MSCI Emerging Markets ex China ETF

iShares Core FTSE Global Infrastructure (AUD Hedged) ETF

iShares Core FTSE Global Property Ex Australia (AUD Hedged) ETF

iShares Asia 50 ETF

iShares China Large-Cap ETF

iShares MSCI South Korea ETF

  15 Contingent Assets, Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
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Directors’ Declaration

11  to 

Director

F
or

 p
er

so
na

l u
se

 o
nl

y



 

   

 

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Unitholders of  

iShares International Funds 

 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial reports of iShares Core MSCI World Ex Australia ESG (AUD Hedged) ETF, iShares 
Core MSCI World Ex Australia ESG ETF, iShares MSCI World ex Australia Minimum Volatility ETF, iShares World 
Equity Factor ETF, iShares Global 100 (AUD Hedged) ETF, iShares S&P 500 (AUD Hedged) ETF, iShares MSCI 
Emerging Markets ex China ETF, iShares Core FTSE Global Infrastructure (AUD Hedged) ETF, iShares Core FTSE 
Global Property Ex Australia (AUD Hedged) ETF, iShares Asia 50 ETF, iShares China Large-Cap ETF and iShares 
MSCI South Korea ETF (collectively “iShares International Funds” or the “Funds”), which comprises the 
statements of financial position as at 30 June 2025, the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income, the statements of changes in equity and the statements of cash flows for the year then ended, and 
notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy information and other explanatory 
information, and the directors’ declaration. 

 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial reports of the Funds are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, 
including: 

• Giving a true and fair view of each Fund’s financial position as at 30 June 2025 and of its financial performance 
for the year then ended; and  

• Complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Reports section of 
our report. We are independent of the Funds in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of the 
Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional & Ethical Standards Board’s 
APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards) (the “Code”) that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial reports in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with the Code. 

We confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, which has been given to 
the directors of BlackRock Investment Management (Australia) Limited (the “Responsible Entity”), would be in the 
same terms if given to the directors as at the time of this auditor’s report.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. 

Key Audit Matters  

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of 
the financial reports for the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
financial reports as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on 
these matters.  

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
ABN 74 490 121 060

Quarter Quay Tower
50 Bridge Street
Sydney, NSW, 2000
Australia

Tel: +61 2 9322 7000
www.deloitte.com.au
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Key Audit Matter How the scope of our audit responded to 
the Key Audit Matter 

Valuation of financial assets and financial liabilities held at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Financial assets and financial liabilities represent the most 
significant balances in the statement of financial position and are 
the primary drivers of net asset value and investment 
performance. 

Refer to Notes 6 and 8 

Name of the 
Funds 

Financial assets as 
at 30 June 2025 

$ 

Financial liabilities as 
at 30 June 2025 

$ 

iShares Core 
MSCI World Ex 
Australia ESG 
(AUD Hedged) 
ETF 

753,837,000 1,137,000 

iShares Core 
MSCI World Ex 
Australia ESG 
ETF 

1,216,972,000 0 

iShares MSCI 
World ex 
Australia 
Minimum 
Volatility ETF  

78,932,000 0 

iShares World 
Equity Factor 
ETF 

164,496,000 0 

iShares Global 
100 (AUD 
Hedged) ETF 

557,024,000 963,000 

iShares MSCI 
Emerging 
Markets ex 
China ETF 

253,547,000 4,000 

iShares S&P 
500 (AUD 
Hedged) ETF 

2,687,168,000 478,000 

Our procedures included, but were not 
limited to: 

• Evaluating relevant controls in 

place at the administrator in 

relation to the valuation of 

financial assets, including any 

exceptions noted; 

 

• Testing on a sample basis, the 

valuation of listed unit trusts and 

equities by confirming the last 

traded market price to 

independent external pricing 

sources; and 

 

• Testing on a sample basis, 

forward foreign exchange 

contracts by verifying valuation 

inputs to observable market 

data. 

We also assessed the adequacy of the 
disclosures included in Notes 6 and 8 to 
the financial statements. 
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iShares Asia 50 
ETF 

922,760,000 16,000 

iShares MSCI 
South Korea 
ETF 

137,137,000 0 

iShares China 
Large-Cap ETF 

397,208,000 14,000 

iShares Core 
FTSE Global 
Infrastructure 
(AUD Hedged) 
ETF 

1,181,723,000 2,492,000 

iShares Core 
FTSE Global 
Property Ex 
Australia (AUD 
Hedged) ETF 

425,920,000 750,000 

 
 
Existence of financial assets and financial liabilities not held in 
custody  

Refer to Notes 6 and 8 

Financial assets and financial liabilities held at fair value through 
profit or loss in the statement of financial position include 
investments in forward foreign exchange contracts, which are 
not held in custody.  

There is a risk over the existence of financial assets and financial 
liabilities held outside custody and whether these are accurately 
recorded in the name of the Fund. 

As disclosed in Notes 6 and 8, forward foreign exchange 
contracts held by the Funds include: 

 

 

 

 

 

Our procedures included, but were not 
limited to:  

 

• Obtaining independent confirmations 
from the relevant counterparties for 
a sample of forward foreign exchange 
contracts held at 30 June 2025 and 
agreed the units held to accounting 
records. 
 

We also assessed the adequacy of the 
disclosures included in Notes 6 and 8 to 
the financial statements. 
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Forward foreign exchange contracts as at 30 June 2025 
$ 

 Name of the Funds Financial  
assets 

Financial liabilities 

iShares Core MSCI 
World Ex Australia 
ESG (AUD Hedged) 
ETF 

10,943,000 1,137,000 

iShares Core MSCI 
World Ex Australia 
ESG ETF 

0 0 

iShares MSCI World 
ex Australia 
Minimum Volatility 
ETF  

0 0 

iShares World Equity 
Factor ETF 

0 0 

iShares Global 100 
(AUD Hedged) ETF 

8,107,000 963,000 

iShares MSCI 
Emerging Markets ex 
China ETF 

0 4,000 

iShares S&P 500 (AUD 
Hedged) ETF 

44,651,000 478,000 

iShares Asia 50 ETF 0 16,000 

iShares MSCI South 
Korea ETF 

1,000 0 

iShares China Large-
Cap ETF 

0 1,000 

iShares Core FTSE 
Global Infrastructure 
(AUD Hedged) ETF 

15,076,000 2,492,000 

iShares Core FTSE 
Global Property Ex 
Australia (AUD 
Hedged) ETF 

6,584,000 743,000 
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Other Information  

The directors of the Responsible Entity (the “Directors”) are responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Funds’ annual reports for the year ended 30 June 2025, 
but does not include the financial reports and our auditor’s report thereon.  
 
Our opinion on the financial reports does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.  
 
In connection with our audit of the financial reports, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial reports or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have 
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report 
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.  

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Reports 

The directors are responsible: 

•    For the preparation of the financial reports in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including giving 
a true and fair view of the financial position and performance of the Funds in accordance with Australian 
Accounting Standards; and  
 

•    For such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial 
reports in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including giving a true and fair view of the financial 
position and performance of the Funds are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

 

In preparing the financial reports, the directors are responsible for assessing the ability of the Funds to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis 
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Funds or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.  

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Reports  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial reports as a whole is free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial reports. 

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial reports, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Funds’ internal control.  

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by the directors.  
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• Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt on the Funds’ ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
financial reports or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Funds to cease to continue as a going concern.  

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial reports, including the disclosures, and 
whether the financial reports represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.  

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 
audit.  

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably 
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards 
applied.  

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance 
in the audit of the financial reports of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe 
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 
benefits of such communication. 

 

 

DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU 

 

 

Jonathon Corbett 

Partner 

Chartered Accountants  

 

Sydney, 23 September 2025 
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